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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to the development and implementation of a skilled workforce scholarship 
program; to provide a continuing appropriation; and to provide for a transfer. 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Schaible: Committee we are going to look at SB 2039. This bill is one of the gap 
scholarship bills. 
 
Senator Davison: I like this bill. It has some matching grant and I feel the matching grant 
from business and industry. These workforce challenges – we need business and industry 
to be engaged – not only at the table, but engaged with their pocketbooks. I think those 
matching dollars is a positive thing. The other thing I like about this is it is a little more 
quantifiable as far as the two-year programs. From a technical standpoint, I like that focus as 
opposed to the previous bill.  
 
(1:53) Chairman Schaible: I agree. This is a kind of scholarship that catches all the other 
ones. This was an idea two and four years ago – they called it a gap scholarship because it 
filled in the gaps for some of the students that didn’t have opportunities to get that. With the 
$10 million that is contributed from the unreserved profits of the BND and the $10 million 
match, you are getting effectively $20 million and only costing the what could possibly be 
state money of $10 million.  
 
(2:41) Senator Davison: In my area of the state, this is going to have a greater impact on 
those kids in the rural communities. We don’t send a lot of kids from Fargo down to NDSCS. 
There are sometimes lots of scholarships for some of the bigger schools that this one has a 
little more focus on students in the rural communities. It may entice kids to go down to an 
NDSCS or Devils Lake. 
 
Senator Oban: Many trades work on contract and based on weather in ND, they will take a 
contract out of state. A bricklayer will go and work outside of the state for a number of months, 
potentially longer. The question I have is would this disqualify them if the individual has to 
work in the state for three years? Do we base this on residency?  
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Chairman Schaible: So, acceptable language would be “if a job is not available, they could 
go out of state? 
 
Senator Oban: It is typically people that can’t work outdoors in the winter in ND.  
 
Chairman Schaible: I understand what you mean, but, how do we ensure that they are 
coming back? 
 
Senator Oban: I believe people that do that, rarely to never, consider themselves a resident 
of that state that they are going to work, but they are not here doing a job for those full three 
years.  
 
Chairman Schaible: If we put in that kind of language, would it deter from passing the bill? 
 
Senator Oban: Maybe that can be determined in adopting the rules of the program. I would 
just hate to disqualify individuals that go into those fields. 
 
Chairman Schaible: Either that or it might be something we could fix next session because 
we would have a little clearer vision of what that would look like.  
 
Senator Davison: If they are working for a ND company and they go out of state to work for 
that company, I don’t think you can fix every exception in a bill. I have an issue with it if they 
don’t come back here because part of the year they are not paying ND income tax.  
 
Senator Oban: However, sometimes those employers are based in MN. A lot of labor folks 
aren’t even – their employer is in MN, but they work and live in ND.  
 
Chairman Schaible: We have a lot of company presence in ND that aren’t based in ND.  
 
Senator Davison: They still are paying ND income tax. That’s why it is on there so we are 
recouping some of those dollars.  
 
(7:40) Chairman Schaible: So, are you looking at an amendment? 
 
Senator Oban: I wanted the minutes to reflect that I hope we can find some rules in 
implementing it if it passes that would accommodate for that situation.  
 
Chairman Schaible: I don’t disagree with your concerns. If we get to much “in the weeds” 
then it gets... Other discussion. 
 
Senator Rust: How many bills that deal with this kind of issue do we have? Over the two 
bills, I do prefer this one because the industry is involved.  
 
Chairman Schaible: I can’t tell you, I know there are some on the House side. Committee 
do you need more time to consider this bill? Or should we take action? 
 
Senator Davison: Motion to Do Pass on SB 2039 and refer to Appropriations. 
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Oban: Second.  
 
Roll call taken: 
 
Yeas: 7; Nays: 0 
 
Motion Carries. 
 
Senator Davison will carry the bill.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
 A BILL for an Act to create and enact two new sections to chapter 6-09 of the NDCC, relating 
to the development and implementation of a skilled workforce scholarship program; to 
provide a continuing appropriation; and to provide for a transfer.  
 

Minutes:                                                 1. Testimony of Ellen Huber 
2. Testimony of Mason Sisk 
3. Proposed Amendment (by Rod Backman)  
4. Proposed Amendment (by Eric Hardmeyer)  

 
Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on SB 2039. Roll call was taken. All 
committee members were present except Senator Robinson, Senator Bekkedahl and 
Senator Poolman.  Becky Deichert, OMB and Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council were also 
present.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Committee members should be aware we have a number of bills in 
committee, and we only have 10 days to pass all the bills out by the 18th of February.   
 
 
(2:00) Ellen Huber, Mandan Business Development Director and President of 
Economic Development Association of North Dakota (EDND), testifies in favor of SB 
2039.  (see Attachment #1) 
 
Chairman Holmberg: Section 2 says “This fund is not subject to section 54-44.1-11” which 
is the section that deals with money clawed back if not spent. That section actually shouldn’t 
be in there because it is a continuing appropriation anyway. We have some suggested 
amendments coming. Committee members received emails from Jared Melville from the ND 
Student Association who said he won’t be able to be here, but their association supports this 
bill. 
 
(8:10) Mason Sisk, Assistant Executive Director of the Technology Council of ND 
(TechND), testifies in favor of SB 2039.  (see Attachment #2) 
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(9:40) Matt Gardner, Greater ND Chamber, testifies in favor of SB 2039.   Greater ND 
Chamber is the largest state-wide business advocacy organization in the state. We’re also 
the state affiliate for NAM, the National Association of Manufacturers. We’re here today in 
support of the bill. Our policy committee leading up to session dealt very closely with 
workforce development and the workforce challenges we face in the state. This bill will 
definitely help that. There is no silver bullet to solve this shortage, but this would be a step in 
the right direction. 
 
 
(10:40) Bruce Murry, Director of ND Association of Community Providers (NDACP), 
testifies in favor of SB 2039.   As our workforce diversifies into technology and as we get 
more heavily into behavioral and medical health, I wanted to speak in favor for this initiative.  
 
 
(11:25) Rod Backman, representing University of Mary and University of Jamestown, 
testifies in favor of SB 2039. (see attachment #3) We are supportive of the bill but are 
proposing an amendment for some clarification. I have visited with Senator Schaible, 
Chairman of the Education committee. He had indicated that he is fine with this amendment. 
We’re concerned if our students and the programs that the private schools offer would qualify. 
We didn’t see anything in the language that excluded us; however, in discussions with the 
Bank of North Dakota and with Senator Schaible, the thinking is it would be better if it 
specifically included our students and our programs. That’s the idea behind the proposed 
amendment. Page 1 line 14 after the word “programs” we would insert “at any institution of 
higher education in North Dakota” just to make that clarification. We would request that you 
consider something that would help make that clarification. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: Senator Schaible had mentioned that this is something he felt they 
would support. 
 
Senator Mathern: Does this include the Tribal colleges? 
 
Backman: I believe it would. It would be considered an institution of higher education. When 
you’re looking at the issue you are dealing with of skilled workforce, I think it’s important that 
all of the students and programs in the state would receive the same benefit to help that state 
reach its goal. 
 
(14:10) Eric Hardmeyer, President of the Bank of North Dakota (BND), testifies in favor 
of SB 2039. (see attachment #4) The Bank of ND is requesting an amendment. In section 
1, we would flip the accountability in terms of the adoption of rules to put the University 
system first in terms of the primary entity that should adopt rules to develop and implement 
the scholarship program and just include the Bank of ND as a participant in that. The second 
one is under section 4 paragraph 4. Again it’s the same issue where we would take the Bank 
of ND out. Actually I would like to amend the amendment. Talking with the University system, 
we would prefer to have “administered by the North Dakota University System” rather than 
“by the educational institution”. These are minor, technical changes, but it does flip a little bit 
of the responsibility. Overall of course we are supportive of this bill and understand the needs 
to enhance those things to promote workforce development. 
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Chairman Holmberg: The informal change would be “scholarships must be provided in the 
form of a grant administered by the North Dakota University System”? 
 
Hardmeyer: Correct. 
 
Senator Mathern: How many dollars do you anticipate this will take in a biennium from the 
bank?   
 
Hardmeyer: What is proposed is $10M. There is a companion bill in the House, HB 1171, 
which is also $10M. I would guess at some point those two would be merged together. 
Whether $10M is sufficient, I’m not sure, but that is what’s proposed. 
 
Senator Dever: I was initially confused by the fact that it’s a revolving fund, but then I see 
that if somebody doesn’t complete the program or they leave the state, that they claw it back. 
Do we have the ability to collect that from a non-resident? 
 
Hardmeyer: Yes, I would think that that would be part of the overall scholarship agreement 
that in an event of a default of the agreement, we have language that it converts to a dead 
instrument and the Bank of ND would then pursue collection. I don’t see any issue with it with 
them moving outside the state. 
 
Senator Dever: The continuing appropriation revolving fund has to do with those funds being 
clawed back. The appropriation of $10M has to be reauthorized every session then? 
 
 
Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council:  Section 3 of the bill provides a transfer; by its very 
nature, a transfer would be a one-time item, especially since it’s in session law. There’s 
nothing that’s being put in Century Code that requires new money be put into the fund on a 
continuing basis. Once that $10M is expended along with the matching funds provided by 
the private sector, I believe it’s intended to provide a total of $20M because there’s a provision 
that requires a $1 matching fund for each $1 provided by the state. That $10M transfer is just 
a one-time thing. 
 
(19:45) Tammy Dolan, ND University System, testifies in favor of SB 2039.  We in the 
system office do manage other loan forgiveness scholarship programs and other grant 
programs so it makes complete sense and we would be very supportive of the amendment. 
There are some administrative things we would need to work through this that we haven’t 
thought through fully, but we would be supportive of this change and the bill fully.  
 
Senator Gary Lee: With the Eric Hardmeyer’s proposed amendment, does that still include 
the colleges that Mr. Backman was talking about and the Tribal colleges? 
 
Dolan: The programs we administer right now are available to all of the colleges within the 
state and so yes, we would be able to work with that.  
 
Chairman Holmberg closes the hearing on SB 2039. 
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Chairman Holmberg: I will ask Adam or the appropriate person to put together the 
amendments including the sentence about the fund not subject to 54-44.1-11 for our 
committee’s consideration. We won’t have a subcommittee on this. 
 
  



2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2039  
2/6/2019 

JOB # 32244 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk:  Alice Delzer  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
 A BILL relating to the development and implementation of a skilled workforce scholarship 
program (Do Pass as Amended).   
 

Minutes:                                                 1. Proposed Amendment # 19.0924.02001  

 
Chairman Holmberg: called the Committee to order on SB 2039. All committee members 
were present. Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council  and Stephanie Gullickson, OMB were also 
present.   
 
 Chairman Holmberg: There was a proposed amendment # 19.0294.02001. 
 
 Senator Mathern: moved the amendment. 2nd by Senator Bekkedahl.   
 
Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council:  explained what the new amendment would do in this 
bill.  Discussion followed.      
 
Chairman Holmberg: Called for a voice vote. It carried.  
 
 V. Chairman Wanzek: Moved a Do Pass as Amended.  2nd by Senator Grabinger:   
 
  A Roll Call vote was taken.  Yea:14; Nay: 0;  Absent: 0.  This will go back to the Education 
Committee. Senator Davison will carry the bill.   
 
The hearing was closed on SB 2039.         
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
A bill relating to the development and implementation of a skilled workforce scholarship 
program; to provide a continuing appropriation; and to provide for a transfer. 
 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 

 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Opened the hearing on SB 2039. 
 
Emily Thompson, Legislative Council:  Essentially this bill creates a skilled workforce 
scholarship program aimed at attracting and retaining students for professional or 
technical skills in high demand areas in this state.  The program is administered by the 
state board of higher education in cooperation with the Bank of North Dakota and the 
workforce education advisory council.  The state board and the workforce education 
advisory council, they are required to compile a list of qualifying educational programs 
that would be eligible for this scholarship funding and has to be published by August 1 
of each year.  Qualifying programs must be completed within two years and pertain 
to technical skills that are in high demand in our state.  A student enrolled in the  
qualifying program may apply for the scholarship which covers tuition, books, fees, 
and supplies essentially all of the expenses related to that high demand program.   
While enrolled in this program, the student must maintain a 2.5 GPA.  They also are 
required to successfully complete the program and remain and work in the state for 
three years following the completion of that educational program.  If they fail to reach 
all the terms, they are subject to repayment which is provided in the terms of the 
scholarship agreement.  The amount provided here is 10 million dollars, that is subject 
to matching funds, so a total of 10 million dollars for this scholarship program.  
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Any questions?  
 
Rep. Hoverson:  About the 10 million dollars, is that funds that are already designated? 
   
Emily Thompson:  The 10 million dollars is from the bank’s current earnings and undivided 
profits that will go into this fund and the other 10 million will be from private industry. 
 
Rep. Hoverson:   Would you still support it if the GPA were raised to 2.75 or 3.?   
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Emily Thompson:  Neutral testimony will answer this question as I just explained the bill. 
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  My concern is about the August deadline, as that is about when 
students are starting college.   
 
Emily Thompson:   The date was selected by the interim taxation committee.  The tax 
committee thought that not using tax incentives but to use grant scholarship program 
would be more of an incentive for the workforce needs. 
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Additional questions?  
 
Lisa Johnson, Interim Vice Chancellor, Academic & Student Affairs, NDUS: 
 (Attachment  1)Support for SB 2039. 
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg: I keep hearing that tomorrow’s workforce is going to be changing 
Jobs many times throughout their career, so is there any opportunity for a student 
to get a liberal arts degree or teach them how to learn and not a specific technical skill? 
 
Lisa Johnson:  It would not under liberal arts transfer as that would be a four year institutions 
that might have scholarships attached to them.   The focus is in the high demand jobs. 
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg: Did the task force look at salaries in different parts of the country? 
 
Lisa Johnson:  I can speak most distinctly on the governors nursing task force and we did 
find that our nurses were paid similarly, but those that lived along the Minnesota boarder, 
Minnesota liked nurses that has one year of experience.   
 
 Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  Could elaborate on the non public accredited institutions of  
higher education?  Could you give us some examples of these? 
 
Lisa Johnson: The non public accredited institutions of higher education would include 
University of Mary and Jamestown.  They were trying to make sure that the student was 
accredited and that they met certification requirements.  That is why they included the  
word accredited.  
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  The non-public would primarily be the University of Mary and 
Jamestown?  That would be private institutions. 
 
Lisa Johnson:  That is correct. 
 
Rep. Dennis Johnson:  Is there a hard list that explains what a high demand field is? 
 
Lisa Johnson:  At present the North Dakota University system, job service, and the 
department of commerce actually do produce what’s called an in demand occupation list. 
It covers the entire range of any credentialed less than an associate all the way through 
masters level.  We work as a multiagency committee, as we can set the parameters 
on that so we could exclude 4 year programs. Our intent was to use that process 
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to produce the high demand list specified in the bill and identify those high demand 
programs.   
 
Rep. Dennis Johnson:  Wind technicians were not heard of 20 years ago in North Dakota, 
now you see wind farms all over.  
 
Lisa Johnson:   We might have to modify and include emerging jobs.  We may have to  
add cyber security, unmanned aerial systems, wind technicians.  Those might be on the 
emerging lise.   
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Additional questions?  
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager: Technically, I have not been familiar with tuition, books and  
supplies in scholarships. 
 
Lisa Johnson: This one is a little different with tuition fees, books and supplies and  
that’s why I always add the additional language for the qualifying educational program 
because if your supplies are to be used in the workforce buying tools to work in a  
mechanical program and we didn’t want them to be the responsibility of the student 
as they could be quite high. Not just any supplies but specific to the program.   
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Do you see and difficulties in tracking students 
If they leave the state? 
 
Lisa Johnson:  It didn’t seem to be a concern when we met to prepare testimony.   
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Do you see any difficulties in matching funds? 
 
Lisa Johnson:  We know that is important to the bill sponsors and this shows campus 
commitment. The student will have a contract in terms of their obligations to meet 
the parameters of the scholarship or that will convert to a loan.  
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:   support for SB 2039. 
 
Jane Vangsness, Vice President for Student Affairs, NDSCS: (Attachment 2  ) 
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Questions?  
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  What are the high demand fields?  Costs depend on the field student 
goes into -  supplies, room and board, grants, etc.  Could you provide us with some  
numbers? 
 
Jane Vangsness:  It truly depends on what field the student goes into.  It would 
Probably cost $10,000.00 a year for a diesel mechanic.   
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  Are you saying that a student that does not get any other  
assistance would not get this? 
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Jane Vangsness:  They would be eligible for this.  
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  They could have up to $10,000.00 a year matched. 
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  How does this work with the federal system? 
 
Jane Vangsness:  It would reduce their loans. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Do you see any issues with the matching piece? 
What is your perspective on this? 
 
Jane Vangsness:  The matching is 1 to 1.   
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Continue with support with SB 2039. 
 
Brenda Zastoupil, North Dakota University System:  I was doing some calculations, 
and I think that will be a process as with other scholarships that other grants would 
be considered.     
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Is there a requirement to apply for other 
programs before this? 
 
Brenda Zastoupil:  It doesn’t specifically say fafsa, but if we have the language that this is 
that last dollar that’s implied. 
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Continue with support of SB 2039. 
 
Eric Hardmeyer, Bank of North Dakota:   end 40:00 (Attachment 3)  There are two bills 
that are dealing with workforce development.  HB 1171 was passed by the house IBL 
and by the full house.  That was amended to convert it from a scholarship to a forgivable 
loan.  Since BND provides funding for both, and is engaged I thought it might be important 
for me to testify on this bill.  These two bills might be combined at some time.  Our  
preference would be SB 2039.  It allows for 10 million dollars versus 5 million.   
   
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Question?  
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:   If a student gets the 5 thousand dollars and works for a year 
and leaves North Dakota, do you make that into a student loan? 
 
Eric Hardmeyer:  It would convert to a debt instrument. 
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Continue with support of SB 2039. 
 
ElRoy Burkle, NDSOS: (Attachment  4) This type of scholarship is great. 
 
Rep. Hoverson:  I am hung up on the 2.5 GPA. 
 
ElRoy Burkle: A lot of students struggle with grades. 
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Rep. Hoverson:  In the bill, I was assuming that the GPA is while you are in college. 
Are we talking about high school or what? 
 
Lisa Johnson:  GPA is accumulative in college.   
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Continue with support. 
 
Ellen Huber, Economic Development Association of ND (EDND): (Attachment 5) 
(46:00-50:25) 
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Any Questions? 
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager: Is there no resident requirement?  
 
Ellen Huber:  If we can attract people and keep them as our future work force, we 
are very much interested in keeping them in our state. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Any Questions?  Who is going to handle the 
marketing program? 
 
Ellen Huber: I would agree.  We haven’t quite gotten to that point yet.  We would  
certainly welcome the opportunity to do so and join together with higher education 
and BND and the economical development association to make sure that this 
program would be known in our state and beyond our state. 
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Continue with support.  
 
Mason Sisk, Asst. Executive Director, Technology Council of North Dakota: 
(Attachment  6) 
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Questions?  
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:  What are the top tech jobs? 
 
Mason Sisk:  The top jobs are cyber security and general IT jobs. 
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Additional questions? Continue with SB 2039. 
 
Cambree Smith, Vice President, ND Student Association: (Attachment 7) would also like 
to propose an amendment    end 59:20 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: You are a student?  Do you plan to stay in ND? 
 
Cambree Smith:  I am a student at Minot University.  I will go out of state for law school 
but I plan to come back to ND. 
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Continue with support of SB 2039. 
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Phil Murphy, Soybean Growers:  I would have testified for this program 30 years ago. 
This is a great help for the state of ND.   
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:    questions 
 
Rep. Hoverson:  From your perspective, do you see the soy bean industry stepping 
Into it and offer scholarships?    
 
Phil Murphy: I don’t represent the soy bean council but I do represent the growers. 
It is certainly is a possibility. 
 
Rep. Hoverson:  If there is this demand, the government steps in to help, do you 
think that would in general lessen the demand response to pressure?  
 
Phil Murphy:  I did spend 36 years as an instructor some of that teaching economics 
but I don’t want to touch that one. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Any other questions for Phil? 
 
Matt Gardner, GNDC:  We are here today in support of this bill. Work force is a big 
Issue.  Work force is likely the number one issue right now. It is important that we 
focus on those high demand career fields.  
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Support – Opposition- Neutral   
 
 Close hearing.    
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
A bill relating to the development and implementation of a skilled workforce scholarship 
program; to provide a continuing appropriation; and to provide for a transfer 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Owens:  Opened committee work on SB 2039. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  The amendments were passed out and in 4 b 
cross out ‘must have maintained at least a 2.75 grade point average’, make it a 2.5 grade 
point average.  This is the bill we passed out of committee called HB 1171.  It hoghouses SB 
2039 back to HB 1171. 
 
Chairman Owens:  In the House, we have a loan program where you can get repaid and all 
that other in claw backs and they have a giveaway grant program in the Senate.  The House 
prefers the loan and the Senate prefers the giveaway program.   They are hoghousing HB 
1171 and turning it into SB 2039.  We are helping them by doing the same thing on this side. 
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:  I’d like to move the Amendment. 
 
Chairman Owens:  Is there a second? 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  I’ll Second it. 
 
Rep. Hoverson:  I would prefer it to go the other way on the grade point average to 3.0. 
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  I was able to talk to a student from NDSCS but did not ask him his 
GPA.  In our conversation, I asked him what he thought the average GPA of fellow students 
may be.  He replied that it was probably below 2.75.   I am thinking this program was more 
like a stipend than a loan.  I like the idea of a scholarship and that we are doing this 
academically, but I think we are looking at a different pool of our students who are going into 
the workforce.  I don’t think we want to remove these options for them because they are 
required to take algebra or chemistry or challenging themselves in some of those areas.  To 
get that GPA at a 2.75 might be eliminating some of the students who could benefit from the 
scholarship. 
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Rep. Mary Johnson:  Here is an example – you have no financial help and you work hard.  
The first thing you do is pay your rent, then the utilities and if you are lucky you have 
something leftover for groceries.  I don’t think we need to penalize those who have to spend 
their time supporting themselves.  They might not do so well in a class or so because they 
don’t have the time, but I don’t think we should penalize those hard workers.  I would like to 
see it move down to a 2.0. 
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:  The Department of Commerce was going to give me more 
information on this bill and I’m wondering if it wouldn’t be better to give it to the whole 
committee.   
 
Jim Leiman, Director, Economic Development and Finance & Assistant Director, 
Workforce Development:  This is a lot less controversial, on line 19 where is states 
“workforce education advisory council”, that organization hasn’t existed for forty years.  We 
were requesting a change to reflect the workforce development council.  The Workforce 
Development Council is a group of thirty-plus private industry members as well as 
representatives such as Chancellor Hagerott from the North Dakota University System 
(NDUS) that know the in-demand occupations and in our opinion can define them very well 
based on trends within each targeted industry in the state as well as other industries that are 
suffering.  For the best focused areas based on industry input as well as the group that 
already includes NDUS representation, we are requesting respectfully that that be changed 
to reflect the Workforce Development Council.     
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  James is looking at the original SB 2039 which I 
questioned when I saw the advisory council and when we hoghouse it we actually use 
workforce development council, which is back to HB 1171.  We have eliminated that advisory 
council but we will take that into consideration when we go into conference committee. 
 
Chairman Owens:  You don’t have that advisory council in the amendment at all.  
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  No, it does not exist in the original bill.   
 
Chairman Owens:  Now we know what to look for when they bring our 1171 back with their 
2039 in it.    Any further comments? 
 
Rep. Hoverson:  I can appreciate hard work and have never heard of a scholarship requiring 
a GPA as being a penalty.  If we could change this from scholarship to subsidy, that might 
be more accurate.  It is coming across more like a subsidy.  Every chart you look at, subsidies 
don’t help students, they drive up tuition.  Where there are no subsidies, tuition goes down. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  This is a loan program, it’s not a scholarship 
program. 
 
Rep. Hoverson:  I thought it was a skilled workforce scholarship program, so that misled me. 
 
Chairman Owens:  That’s what the Senate sent over.  That’s where the House and Senate 
are in disagreement.   
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Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  The amendment is what you want to have in your 
hand.  It is a totally hoghoused bill, meaning it has totally replaced the original 1171, except 
for the GPA.   
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  On the top of page 2 of the amendment ‘must remain and work in the 
state’, should we have a time frame on that or leave it up to those tasked with that?  Do you 
want a time frame on it or is specifically left off for a purpose?   
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  If they are not employed, they won’t have the 
benefit of a supplemental loan program.  They have to remain here and be employed in order 
to have that one for one.  
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:   They can’t get employed, get a benefit and take off.   This is ongoing 
during their employment in this state? 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Yes, so much per year or one-third of the value 
of the loan or accumulative amount of $17,000.   
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  Is it the intent, because nowhere in the amendment do I see non- 
public?   Is it intended to cover private – because we had non-public listed before? 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  The piece about this is the student has 
accumulated a loan and they have had to apply for the loan process through the Bank of ND.  
They are on the books as having a loan.   They could have attended a school and they have 
acquired a loan and if they are in those finite groups that we need workforce for, then they 
can enter this program and get assistance with their loan repayment.  They are gainfully 
employed in the state of North Dakota. 
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  I could go to a Minnesota school and take on loans through Minnesota 
and those can be taken on? 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: No, just North Dakota.  They have to be employed 
in the state of North Dakota in one of those specified occupations.   They could go to school 
wherever but they have to have an existing loan with the Bank of North Dakota.   
 
Chairman Owens:  Sections 8 and 9 are a dollar for dollar matching program too.  It is not 
just public funds that are doing this.   In order to get the public funds, the individuals are 
working on the apprenticeship program or working for that company already. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  If there are now private funds coming in, there is 
no loan program.   
 
Chairman Owens:  We know the industries are interested in this because they are struggling 
to get qualified workforce right now.   
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  On page 1 c in the amendment, ‘or other participating lender’, can we 
clarify?  What is meant by that?  What other lenders are there in North Dakota? 
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Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:   I don’t have an answer to that but I can certainly 
find out.   
 
Chairman Owens:  If we can put the motion for the amendment on hold and let her get some 
answers, we can go further on that this afternoon. 
 
When you fill out a financial aid application now you fill out the FAFSA, which used to be the 
PAL grant and before that it was the BEOG.  Now, the FAFSA is an all-inclusive financial aid 
application.  You still have to apply for scholarships separately, but as far as grants, student 
loans, secured student loans and interest free student loans, they are all taken off that one 
application.   
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  inaudible 
 
Chairman Owens:  As far as this program goes, it has to come out of this fund and has to 
be a dollar for dollar match based on them getting participating industries.  With this portion 
of the grant, you get federal dollars or you get a secured interest loan and you still need some 
money – so for that portion of it you can apply for this.   It would actually be separate from 
FAFSA.   
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  inaudible 
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  Under 4 a, who determines if it is a qualifying educational program 
from the Bank of North Dakota? 
 
Chairman Owens:  We are having issues with this bill because this is the first time we are 
seeing this.  It originally went through IBL, because it is workforce.   
 
Rep. Brandy Pyle:  The higher ed board senate concurrent resolution went to Judiciary. 
 
Chairman Owens:  The SCR was supposed to come to us after talking to the assistant 
majority leader and the speaker sent it to judiciary, because it is a constitutional revision.  
SCR 4016 went to Judiciary rather than coming to us.  It was discussed that it was done 
wrong because they were constitutional revisions and they needed to be sent to Judiciary.   
We will hold the motion till this afternoon.   
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:   I’ll withdraw the motion till we see the amendments. 
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Chairman Owens:  Reopened SB 2039.  Our amendment is HB1171 as it was passed 
out to the senate.   
 
Rep. Mary Johnson: (Attachment 1) On 4 – c on the bottom of page one where is says 
or other participating lender.  Those are all lenders across the nation?  Does BND have 
student loans? 
 
Chairman Owens:  Let me just clarify this real quick.  All student loans now are done 
through Department of education.  The only way another institution or bank is if  
someone has refinanced their student loans after they graduated and then they have  
it with another bank.  The students are advised not to do that with many normal banks 
because they lose the ability if they work in government for 10 years to have the rest 
of it deferred, so they lose that option if they get it with a regular bank, they don’t lose 
that if they have it with the BND, because it is a state bank.  Student loans are not like 
it used to be.  President Obama moved everything to the department of education so 
that 3% loans could become 61/2% loans.   
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  The student would have completed school, and had 
a student loan through any entity, we are looking for workforce issues as defined where 
we need people in the workforce and there is no payment where there are no matching 
funds and where there will be no payment for that individuals’ loan even if he wasn’t employed 
in the state of ND.   
 
Rep. Grueneich:  This is designed for the smaller industries that need more of the 
workforce.  I don’t think that restricting them to go to a ND school is necessarily  
the answer.  The education is one thing but we want them to work, live and become 
established in the state of ND and that is the ultimate end result.  In most cases, 
once they work in a community for a year or two years, they are established and  
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probably have a significant other friend.  They are established within the community 
whether it be rural or recreational or sporting.   
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  I think we had a little discussion on the fact that if 
they were employed for a year and left their continuation of payment alone would 
be only eligible for that year of employment. 
 
Rep. Grueneich:  Actually that is not correct because on this the way this is set up 
there is no pay and then you get to play.  You are going to have a student loan set up 
prior to, so you leave on your three, you are responsible for the money loaned.   
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  If they leave the state after one year, but their 
payment program leaves with them.  They receive no more funding if they leave the 
state.  We were talking on that they could be educated in any school as long as the 
criteria was with the workforce need.  Out of state, in state wherever.  The question 
has arisen about having the ND University system in the bill if indeed those individuals 
not necessarily had anything to do with the ND university system.  I think the ND  
workforce development council has all the statistics anyway on where our workforce 
needs are.   
 
Rep. Grueneich:  I think that anytime you can have one entity as opposed to multiple. 
I think that would only strengthen your position. 
 
Vice Chariman Schreiber-Beck:  On page 1 Number 3, strike The North Dakota  
university system and.  On page 1, 4b again it is 2.5 versus 2.75.   
 
Rep. Hager:  I have a question whether we need a GPA at all because we are giving 
them a loan and I know whether that is in there at all anymore.  We have gone from 
a scholarship to a stipend to a grant and now we are talking about basic loans.  This is 
the thing that if you are in the bank that’s not the need of any concept of GPA at all.  
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  I intend to agree with you because these people have 
provided competency and finished a program and they have a loan and they have a  
job.  What more can you ask?  Please eliminate 4b and renumber accordingly.  Any 
other comments that I will definitely take? 
 
Rep. Zubke:  On number 3, where it says the ND workforce development council shall 
compile a list of qualifying educational programs, is there something through job service 
that will actually determine that or is there already criteria set up to say that this is in high 
demand or this is an emerging occupation?  Could I go to job service and ask for a list 
of high demand jobs or emerging occupation jobs? 
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  Yes, that is correct. 
 
Rep. Hager:  I am struggling a little bit about removing something that is education 
whether it is the university system or something, but looking at qualifying educational 
programs I think some component of the educational system versus the commerce 
system should be involved in compiling that list of the programs.  We are looking at 
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programs that they will be going into, not a partnership. 
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  Motion to adopt amendment. 
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  Second. 
 
Rep. Pyle:  Who are the members of the ND Workforce Development Council? 
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  I can look it up, but I am one of them.  It is a very 
large membership on that workforce council, if you go online a number of state  
representatives, a number of two legislators, one from the senate, one from the house 
probably made up from industry representatives.  Vast number of people.  Higher ed 
is represented also.   
 
Chairman Owens:  Any further questions or comments? 
 
Rep. Pyle:  There is a variety and Dr. Hagerott is on there out of higher ed.  There is 
a representation of different industries and there are 33 members. 
 
Voice Vote to amend as presented.  Voice vote carried 
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  Motion to Do Pass SB 2039 as amended and rereferred to  
appropriations. 
 
Vice Chairman Schreiber-Beck:  Second. 
 
Rep. Marshall:  This will take $5,000,000 from the BND.  That would be our half 
of the total. 
 
Chairman Owens: There has to be a one to one match.  The other half has to be deposited 
in the BND.  That is what this bill says.  This is not a continuing appropriation.  
 
Roll Call Vote taken Yes  11  No  1  Absent  2 . 
 
Rep. M Johnson is the Carrier.  
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Chairman Delzer: Called the meeting to order for SB 2039. This bill basically is a hog 
house and you put HB 1171 in it.  
 
Representative Owens: That is exactly what we did, SB 2039 came to us as a giveaway 
program this is a grant program that requires matching funds and specific to high demand 
occupations to help without work force issues.  This requires a 1 to 1 match so no money 
flows out unless industry participates.  
 
Chairman Delzer: That’s like if it’s a nursing scholarship it would have to be somebody that 
is hiring a nurse, or a stem scholarship, it would be the industry that is hiring them.  
 
Representative Owens: This only refers to consolidated loans at the bank of North Dakota 
or other consolidated loans at other banks.  It’s limited to 5667 dollars or 1/3 of the 
applicants is paid after and directly to the schools and it must meet the four qualifications 
listed.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Why would it be paid to the school?  
 
Representative Owens: I wouldn’t be paid to the school; it would be paid directly to the 
bank.  
 
Chairman Delzer: And the total they can receive is 17 thousand? And that would be a 
three-year deal? What happens if they move after two years? There’s no recapture?  
 
Representative Owens: Then we get those two years that they were here because it’s 
paid after the fact. There’s no recapture at this point.  
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Chairman Delzer: And it’s up to the Bank to decide who gets it? 
 
Representative Owens: The North Dakota Workforce Council shall compile a list of 
qualifying education programs that are specific to and working with Job Service of North 
Dakota annually to determine the eligible high demand occupations. Graduates of those 
qualifying programs may apply for this skilled workforce student loan and then there has to 
be a dollar for dollar match before any money is paid out, up to a maximum of 5 million 
dollars.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Did you have any discussion about whether or not that list of what 
qualifies should have some kinds of legislative approval? 
 
Representative Owens: We did not, the demands across the state change every six 
months, so I would be concerned about the reaction time.  
 
Chairman Delzer: It’s 5 million from the bank of North Dakota footings, and this a new 
program and there is no repayment on this? 
 
Representative Owens: This is a new program to entice a private partnership for 
scholarships to build our workforce. Our unemployment rate is extremely low and yet we 
have plenty of jobs.  
 
Chairman Delzer: The would have to work a whole year before they would get paid back. 
SB 2039 came over was 10 million dollars, was it considerably different?  
 
Representative Owens: It was a giveaway program that the committee didn’t like at all.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Since you basically put a house bill in here are you aware of what they 
are doing?  
 
Representative Owens: I understand that they hog housed SB 2071 into SB 2039 so if 
this passes the chamber and goes to the senate it will go into conference committee. There 
will be 1171 in one conference committee and 2039 in another.  
 
Chairman Delzer: I would guess they will kill this bill and go to conference on 1171.  
 
Representative Owens: If 1171 comes over looking like 2039 I already know at least 13 
no votes.  
 
Representative J. Nelson: In the appropriation the Bank profits, was that the same in both 
bills?  
 
Chairman Delzer: 2039 was 10 million of bank profits and 1171 was 5 million in bank 
profits.  
 
Representative J. Nelson: Was there any thought about another funding source? This is 
only for the upcoming biennium isn’t there usually money left over for.  
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Chairman Delzer: That’s already figured into the return and it’s in the general fund budget 
statues already. The return from everything is 54 I think from K-12 is around 12.  
 
Representative J. Nelson: There was 12 in human services.  
 
 Representative Sanford: Did the committee look at the success or history for these type 
of programs?  
 
Representative Owens: The discussion wasn’t about other states or federal programs that 
examine this other than getting into what is available for student loans and student grants. 
As far as this particular bill it was new to us, because this was a private public matching we 
thought that we unique enough to take it back to that.  
 
Chairman Delzer: There are some fields that are paying 100% right now is this going to 
pay half of what they are already paying.  
 
Representative Owens: Not unless it is considered high demand on occupation in North 
Dakota and there’s a qualifying program in the state.  
 
Chairman Delzer: That’s why I don’t like having someone else make this list. 
 
Representative Owens: It’s not just anyone else, it’s the North Dakota Work Force Council 
along with our Job Service. Those two groups have invested interest in improving the 
workforce and two, in filling jobs. 
 
Chairman Delzer: Any further discussion? Seeing none we will close this meeting.   
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3:10 Chairman Delzer: Called the meeting to order for SB 2039. This is the work force 
development bill, came over from the senate with 10 million and a little bit different. It does 
do 5 million out of the footings of the bank, it allows the bank and job service to decide which 
employment opportunities are in high enough demand to get some of this funding.  
 
4:50 Representative Monson: In section 2, it talks about continuing appropriation, does this 
go on every biennium with 5 million? 
 
Chairman Delzer: The funding I think would be there one time but if the fund wasn’t used by 
the end of the biennium with a continuing appropriation it would still be in place to be used.   
 
 Representative Sanford: Is there a procured of following this kind of thing? We seem to attack 
these issues up front with a scholarship or in the back with loan forgiveness, I would like to know what 
kind of effect these have.  
 
Representative Monson: Another thing in there’s a lot of companies that already do this, so are we 
just giving them that back? 
 
Chairman Delzer: Well it says in here they can’t get it, if the individual is receiving forgiveness under 
any other provision than they may not receive a student loan repayment grant under this section 
under the same application year.  
 
 Representative Nathe: Is this a 1 to 1 match up to 5 million? 
 
Chairman Delzer: Yes, and in sub section 9 it says anything that comes back is to be deposited in 
the fund to be a revolving type of loan.  
 
Representative Monson: I like this idea but I think we could do better.  
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Chairman Delzer: I think we could defiantly have some kind of reporting requirements.  
 
Representative Monson: Can you give us a little time to work on some kind of amendment for a 
reporting requirement?  
 
Representative Beadle: This one compared to HB 1171, I served on the interim taxation committee 
as we were working on this and originally it was put in as a scholarship fund so we were paying for it 
in the front. Through the interim we had a few others that wanted to change it to the back end because 
it models more of what South Dakota is doing. I think the reporting requirements would be a good 
addition.  
 
Chairman Delzer: No further discussion? We will hold that until we get those amendments.  
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Chairman Delzer: SB 2039 is a bill that deals with work force enhancement, came out of the 
senate as a scholarship and grant type of program. My understanding is the house education 
committee did was put HB 1171 into this bill. HB 1171 is in the senate and that has been 
amended pretty close to this bill. We were asked to put a DO Not Pass on this bill so that 
they can conference on one bill instead of two.  
 
Representative Brandenburg: Do Not Pass 
 
Representative J. Nelson: Second  
 
Chairman Delzer: Discussion on the motion? One of the differences is the senate wanted 
10 million dollars and the House is at 5. The other thing the House is more about paying off 
loans and possibly some kind of scholarships but not grants, the Senate has more grants. I 
think there is some compromised language being discussed on HB 1171. We were talking 
about making sure there was reporting requirements on it, they are planning on adding that 
into HB 1171 as well.  
 
Representative J. Nelson: Why we need this today? I thought we’d see how the conference 
committee is progressing before we move this.  
 
Chairman Delzer: We were asked to put this in that bill, that’s the reason for the Do Not 
Pass.  
 
Representative J. Nelson: The question should be asked where does the best policy come 
from?  
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Chairman Delzer: We don’t want it out here that there are two different bills out there that 
they are confessing from two different committees.  Any further discussion? Seeing none we 
will call the roll. 
 
A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea:       12       Nay:      7       Absent:      2 
 
Motion Carries, Representative Brandenburg will carry the bill.  
 
Chairman Delzer: We will close the meeting for SB 2039. 
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